TIOGA COUNTY ED&P/TOURISM/CCE/SOIL & WATER

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA

October 3, 2023
1:00 PM
o MINUTES
o Approval of minutes of September 5, 2023

J FINANCIAL

(0]
0]
(0]

Economic Development
Planning
Sustainability Management

. OLD BUSINESS

O 00O O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OOo

Reports

Grants

Economic/Community Development
Land Bank

Workforce Development

Planning

Sustainability Management

IDA

Misc.

J NEW BUSINESS

O O 0000 O0Oo0OOo

Reports

Grants

Economic/Community Development
Land Bank

Workforce Development

Planning

Sustainability Management

IDA

Misc.

J PERSONNEL

J RESOLUTIONS

(0]
(0]

(0]

JOS5-Transfer Funds 2023 Solid Waste Budget

J14-Filing of an Application for DEC Municipal Waste Reduction
and Recycling (MWRR) Program

J15-Recommend Member (EJardine) to the Susquehanna
Heritage Area Commission



PROCLAMATIONS- N/A

ADJOURNMENT



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING
TOURISM/AGRICULTURE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
September 5, 2023

ATTENDEES:
Legislators: Barb Roberts, Dale Weston, Keith Flesher, Dennis Mullen, Marte Sauerbrey

Staff: LeeAnn Tinney, Linda Sampson, Sean Lanning, Ellen Pratt, Cathy Haskell, Peter DeWind

Guests: Lisa Weston-Bialy, Cornell Cooperative Extension (CCE)

Committee Chair, Legislator Barb Roberts called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING (ED&P): Agenda and attachments previously
emailed. Ms. Tinney reported the following:
. MINUTES
A. Approval of minutes of July 5, 2023
Legislator Roberts asked for approval of the minutes from the July 5, 2023, committee
meeting. Legislator Flesher made a motion to accept the July 5, 2023, minutes,
seconded by Legislator Weston. All were in favor.
B. Approval of minutes of August 8, 2023
Legislator Roberts asked for approval of the minutes from the August 8, 2023,
committee meeting. Legislator Flesher made a motion to accept the August 8, 2023,
minutes, seconded by Legislator Weston. All were in favor.

Il. FINANCIAL
The 2023 Year-to-Date Budget Reports were in the committee packets. Ms. Tinney
reported the following:
A. 2023
1. Economic Development
e Year-to-Date Budget is tfracking.
2. Planning
e Year-to-Date Budget is fracking.
3. Sustainability Management
e Year-to-Date Budget is fracking.

lll. OLD BUSINESS
A. Reports



1. Cornell Cooperative Extension: Lisa Weston-Bialy, Acting Director- Monthly report
previously emailed. Ms. Weston-Bialy reported that the Board is putting an Interim
Director in place to start in the next couple of weeks. This gives Ms. Weston-Bialy a
chance to train her assistant and will also give her the opportunity to apply for the
position. Ms. Weston-Bialy reviewed her report, highlighting the Tioga County Fair, 4-
H Youth Development, Hilltop Community Farm, the Farmer Incubator Program and
Master Gardners.

2. Tioga County Soil & Water Conservation District — Monthly report previously emailed.

3. Tioga County Tourism — Monthly report previously emailed.

4. Economic Development- Sean Lanning, Education Workforce Coordinator —In
keeping with staff reporting, Ms. Tinney infroduced Mr. Lanning. Mr. Lanning
reported on the following:

Talent Supply Table (TST)

>

>

>

Distributed the Talent Supply Table report from the first year, stafing the
second year will focus more attention on individual school’s needs as well as
continue with job boards where businesses can post jobs for students.
Working on establishing a partnership with the Career Center; negotiations
on having a Career Center staff member in the school once a week.

TST gathering was held two weeks ago. Well attended; TST committees,
school administrators, BOCES, Economic Development, Department of Labor
Broome Tioga Workforce, SUNY Broome, and TC3 were in attendance. Good
discussion; a successful gathering.

Other projects

>

YVYVY

»

Twin Tiers Regional Job Fair held in March in Waverly - Well attended; 110
businesses, 300 graduating seniors, and over 150 members of the general
public were in attendance.

Home Central Trades Day (2"d annual)- Several schools in affendance.
Working with OFA and Tioga Opportunities Building Trades Program.

Owego Apalachin CTE — In discussion with BT BOCES regarding an electricity
program at the Owego Apalachin School with the addition of more classes
making opportunities for adult classes in the future.

Attended the Regional Economic Development Council meeting and
learned their top priority is talent attraction, development, and retention.
NYS Career Readiness Educators Association: Friend of Work-Based Learning
Award — Mr. Lanning was recognized for the work he is doing with the school
districts.

Legislator Mullen thanked Mr. Lanning for the work he is doing, keeping kids
aware of local opportunities.
5. Sustainability- Household Hazardous Waste Plan DRAFT- Dr. Pratt reported that DEC

requires a Solid Waste Management Plan be done every 10 years.

> Dr. Pratt is writing the plan and distributed a component of the plan, a list of
Permit Procedures for Haulers (commercial, business). This is in draft form and will
be looking to modify the Source Separation Law requiring a public hearing. Dr.
Pratt asks the committee to review and get back to her with any fhoughts.



> Dr. Pratt will also forward the Solid Waste Management Plan Draft for review and

>

would like the committee to get back to her with any thoughts. She would like to
submit the plan to DEC mid-October. Because of its length, a hard copy will be
made available. Dr. Pratt in hopeful to adopt it by the end of the year.

A resolution will be prepared and brought forward at the next committee
meeting.

B. Grants
1. Active Grants — Tioga County as applicant

a.

e.

(8

g.

CDBG- Racker Neighborhood Depot

i. Confract is not signed yet. There are challenges getting everyone fo agree
on wording in the contract. Hopefully this will be resolved this week so the
construction company (Manzini) can begin working on the project.

Restore NY- River House Confectionery and Mercantile (Fuddy Duddy'’s) -

i. EDA&P staff is assisting with paperwork.

NYS Snowmobile- Countywide Phase 1 & Phase Il is progressing.

. ARC- Update Countywide Strategic Plan

i.  Ms. Jardine will be attending the September 215t Legislative Worksession to
give update.

NYPA- EV charging stations — Looking at the beginning of 2024 to see progress.

DEC- HHW Program - Dr. Pratt reported on earlier.

Restore NY- Tioga Trails

i. ED&P staff is assisting with paperwork.

2. Active Grants- Tioga County is not applicant; spreadsheet was previously emailed
and is in the committee packet. Ms. Tinney asked for any questions. Those listed
under technical assistance will be in the blanket resolution that is listed below as a
DRAFT and will be sent to Ms. Haskell for review.

3. 2023 EDP Contracts

a.
b.

C.

Snowmobile Grants- Updated agreement received from Legal this morning.
Restore NY (River House Confectionery and Mercantile)- Agreement and
supporting documents have been entered into MUNIS. Working on getting the
grant application in Munis.

Restore NY (Tioga Trails)- Agreement and supporting documents have been
entered into MUNIS. Working on getting the grant application in Munis.

C. Economic/Community Development
1. Village of Owego

a.

Downtown Revitalization Initiative (DRI) administration
i. Memo of Understanding between the IDA and the County is in MUNIS.

2. Village of Waverly

a. NY Forward- Local Planning Committee #4 — Next meeting on September 13th.
b. Public Engagement #2 — Next meeting on September 27,
D. Land Bank

1. Liberty Street Property discussion with developer- Project has fallen through; Land
Bank Board is re-evaluating what to do with that project.

2 81 North Avenue — Land Bank has acquired this property and have applied for NY
Main Street funds. We don't know whether we will receive funding yet.

3



3. Site visits upcoming foreclosure properties — Ms. Woodburn and Ms. Schnabl have
visited several properties.
4. NY Main Street Candor Project is complete, however waiting on post renovation
enviro testing.
E. Workforce Development
1. Talent Supply Table meeting- Mr. Lanning reported earlier this was well attended.
F. Planning — Ms. Jardine confinues to work on the following:
Countywide Strategic Plan/ARC grant administration.
Assisting with the Chamber of Commerce Business Expo.
Providing DRI project assistance.
Town of Newark Valley site plan review, procedures, and applicafion.
NYS DEC Transportation Listening Session and CCE Tompkins assistance;
transportation issues in rural communities.
6. Town of Richford Solar Energy Law revision assistance.
G. Sustainability Management- Dr. Pratt continues to work on the following:
1. August E-Bulletin to Tioga County Employees
2. Continuing assistance with municipalities on EWaste & Clean-Up events
a. Town of Nichols- Scheduled for October.
b. Village of Waverly and Town of Barton- Scheduled for October.
Reducing waste educational videos to be placed on the website.
Improving website o coordinate with NYSDEC changes.
Borrow-a-Bin Program — Used in 5 events this year; looking to have more bins
available for next year.

Sl ol

Sl S

IV. NEW BUSINESS
A. Economic/Community Development
1. Susquehanna Heritage Area Commission- Looking fo fill vacancy; Ms. Jardine is
willing to fill that position.
B. Presentations (2)
1. Lenders Roundtable on August 10t — A partnership with the Chamber and IDA;
well attended.
2. Greater Valley Chamber- Business information session on August 31st.
C. Workforce Development- Mr. Lanning reported on earlier.
1. Teacher Apprenticeship Program
2. SVE/Waverly Career Center Partnership
a. Contract/cost negotiations
. Y-ON Codlition- continued partnership
. Greater Binghamton Clean Energy Summif
. Youth Council- continued partnership
lanning
. 239 Reviews (3)
a. County Case 2023-018: Town of Nichols, Site Plan review (Tioga Downs RV
park); recommended approval.
b. County Case 2023-019: Town of Newark Valley, Site Plan review, Solar Special
Use permit (TJA Clean Energy); recommended disapproval.

3
4
5
D. P
1

4



c. County Case 2023-020: Town of Owego, Site Plan review (Tioga Learning
Properties); recommended approval.
E. Sustainability Management

1. 2023 YTD
a. Paid to Broome County
i. HHW=$10,391

i. E-Waste= $8,439
b. Towns (EWaste)= $23,036

2. Update to Solid Waste Management Plan- Dr. Pratt reported on earlier.

a. Anficipating draft plan by October meeting.
b. Source Separation Local Law revision will be needed.

3. Sustainability Plan RFP- Upon review of the responses to the RFP request, it was
found that they were not what Dr. Pratt wanted to accomplish. Dr. Praft will revise
the RFP and send out again. She may wait to partner with next year's CFA; there
may be state funding available to assist in putting the plan together. Ms. Tinney
will keep this committee informed.

4. Compost bins/Soil & Water MOU — Dr. Pratt was looking for a partner to offer
composting opportunities to our residents and found Ms. Walsh, Soil and Water, to
be very interested in this partnership. Dr. Pratt would purchase the composting
bins and Ms. Walsh would make connections, collect the money, and give the
money back to Dr. Pratft to cover the cost of the bins. Mr. DeWind has
recommended a MOU be put together.

F. Misc.

1. Tourism office- Hotel/Motel Tax Local Law

a. Local Law

i. Public Hearing was held August 24th.

i. On September 12t the Legislature adopts the resolution for the Local Law
Ms. Tinney thanked Ms. Haskell for her time in getting this completed.

V. PERSONNEL
A. Megan Schnabl- 4-year anniversary (9/3)
B. Abbey Ortu- resignation (4 years)

VI. RESOLUTIONS (3)
108-Designation of Tioga Co. LDC DBA Tioga Co. Tourism as Authorized Tourism
Promotion Agency for 2024
109-Technical Assistance Provided by EDP Staff DRAFT
116-Appoint Member (V Davis) fo the Tioga County Planning Board

After reviewing the above resolutions, Ms. Tinney asked this committee for support fo move
the resolutions forward. The vote to support the above resolutions follows:

Legislator Roberts - yes

Legislator Weston — yes

Legislator Flesher — yes

Legislator Mullen —yes



VIi. PROCLAMATIONS- N/A

VIIl. ADJOURNMENT
With no further topics of discussion or questions, the meeting was adjourned at 2:00 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,
Linda Sampson
Administrative Assistant Economic Development & Planning



/2 TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 10

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORIGINAL TRANERS REVISED AVATLABLE PCT
General Fund APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL

A6422 Economic Develophent

A6422 411132 Tax On Hotel/Motel -30,000 0 -30,000 -34,717.69 .00 4,717.69 115.7%
A6422 412890 oOther Gen Gov. Inc -100,000 0 -100,000 -36,670.08 .00 -63,329.92 36.7%*
A6422 412891 other General Gov. 0 0 -13,726.86 .00 13,726.86 100.0%
A6422 419890 contribution To Ec -20,000 0 -20,000 -11,750.00 .00 -8,250.00  58.8%*
A6422 421891 other Home & Commu -25,000 0 -25,000 -6,250.00 .00 -18,750.00  25.0%*
A6422 437170 State Aid- Adminis 0 0 0 -52,055.16 00 52,055.16 100.0%
A6422 510010 Full Time 295,458 0 295,458 208,414.63 00 87,043.37 70.5%
A6422 510020 Part Time/Temporar 12,553 0 12,553 8,545.21 .00 4,007.79 68.1%
A6422 520090 Computer 0 4,448 4,448 4,389.59 .00 58.41 98.7%
A6422 540010 Advertising 3,000 -100 2,900 2,462.53 .00 437.47  84.9%
A6422 540040 Books 450 100 550 451.43 .00 98.57 82.1%
A6422 540070 Car Maintenance 2,000 0 2,000 965.52 .00 1,034.48 48.3%
A6422 540180 Dues 400 200 600 508.00 .00 92.00 84.7%
A6422 540220 Automobile Fuel 150 0 150 29.27 .00 120.73  19.5%
A6422 540320 Leased/Service Equ 1,320 800 2,120 913.12 .00 1,206.88 43.1%
A6422 540360 Meals/Food 750 0 750 142.18 .00 607.82 19.0%
A6422 540390 Mileage Expense 0 100 100 28.75 .00 71.25  28.8%
A6422 540420 office supplies 1,280 0 1,280 557.56 .00 722.44  43.6%
A6422 540480 Postage 380 0 380 49,95 .00 330.05 13.1%
A6422 540485 Printing/Paper 1,500 0 1,500 199.99 .00 1,300.01  13.3%
A6422 540487 Program Expense-wD 100,000 -900 99,100 2,086.27 .00 97,013.73 2.1%
A6422 540590 Services Rendered 20,000 -800 19,200 500.00 .00 18,700.00 2.6%
A6422 540620 Software Expense 100 0 100 .00 .00 100.00 .0%
A6422 540660 Telephone 740 0 740 500.34 .00 239.66 67.6%
A6422 540733 Training/Al1 Other 5,000 -3,848 1,152 739.00 .00 413.00 64.1%
A6422 581088 sState Retirement F 15,206 0 15,206 22,244.83 .00 -7,038.43 146.3%*
A6422 583088 social Security Fr 22,030 0 22,030 16,805.97 .00 5,223.80 76.3%
A6422 584088 Workers Compensati 8,944 0 8,944 5,582.39 .00 3,361.31  62.4%
A6422 585588 Disability Insuran 384 0 384 247.76 .00 136.68  64.4%
A6422 586088 Health Insurance F 56,915 0 56,915 49,262.04 .00 7,652.87 86.6%
A6422 588988 Eap Fringe 88 0 88 69.35 .00 18.45 79.0%
TOTAL Economic Development 373,648 0 373,648 170,525.89 .00 203,122.13  45.6%
TOTAL General Fund 373,648 0 373,648 170,525.89 .00 203,122.13  45.6%
TOTAL REVENUES -175,000 0 -175,000 -155,169.79 .00 -19,830.21
TOTAL EXPENSES 548,648 0 548,648 325,695.68 .00 222,952.34

Report generated: 09/28/2023 17:09 page 1
User: SampsonL

Program ID: glytdbud



(£ TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 10
AVATLABLE PCT

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/. REVISED
APPROP. ADISTMITS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL  ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE /COL
GRAND TOTAL 373,648 0 373,648 170,525.89 .00 203,122.13 45.6%
*%* END OF REPORT - Generated by Sampson, Linda **
Page 2

Report generated: 09/28/2023 17:09
user: SampsonL
Program ID: glytdbud



12/ TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 10

ACCOUNTS FOR: ORTGINAL TRANERS REVISED AVATLABLE PCT
General Fund APPROP ADJISTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL

A8020 Planning

A8020 449020 ARC23 Federal Aid-P 0 -25,000 -25,000 -4,892.60 .00 -20,107.40 19.6%*
A8020 510010 Full Time 156,482 0 156,482 108,334.83 .00 48,147.17  69.2%
A8020 540010 Advertising 200 0 200 73.14 .00 126.86  36.6%
A8020 540040 Books 600 0 600 131.00 .00 469.00 21.8%
A8020 540140 cContracting Servic 22,000 0 22,000 5,245.75 .00 16,754.25 23.8%
A8020 540140 ARC23 Contracting S 0 50,000 50,000 39,140.80 .00 10,859.20 78.3%
A8020 540180 Dues 800 100 900 826.00 .00 74.00 91.8%
A8020 540220 Automobile Fuel 200 0 200 .00 .00 200.00 .0%
A8020 540320 Leased/Service Equ 1,200 0 1,200 .00 .00 1,200.00 .0%
A8020 540360 Meals/Food 190 0 190 .00 .00 190.00 .0%
A8020 540390 Mileage Expense 600 0 600 .00 .00 600.00 .0%
A8020 540420 office sSupplies 500 0 500 .00 .00 500.00 .0%
A8020 540480 Postage 900 0 900 23.64 .00 876.36 2.6%
A8020 540485 Printing/Paper 1,000 0 1,000 .00 .00 1,000.00 .0%
A8020 540590 Services Rendered 4,875 0 4,875 1,175.20 .00 3,699.80 24.1%
A8020 540660 Telephone 600 0 600 218.44 .00 381.56 36.4%
A8020 540733 Training/All Other 1,200 -100 1,100 50.00 .00 1,050.00 4.5%
A8020 581088 State Retirement F 11,872 0 11,872 9,216.70 .00 2,655.68 77 .6%
A8020 583088 sSocial Security Fr 10,535 0 10,535 8,295.54 .00 2,239.27 78.7%
A8020 584088 workers Compensati 2,449 0 2,449 1,861.05 .00 587.63 76.0%
A8020 585588 Disability Insuran 136 0 136 99.37 .00 36.35 73.2%
A8020 586088 Health Insurance F 44,033 0 44,033 32,951.91 .00 11,081.56 74.8%
A8020 588988 Eap Fringe 29 0 29 23.37 00 5.75 80.3%

TOTAL Planning 260,401 25,000 285,401 202,774.14 .00 82,627.04 71.0%

TOTAL General Fund 260,401 25,000 285,401 202,774.14 .00 82,627.04 71.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 0 -25,000 -25,000 -4,892.60 .00 -20,107.40
TOTAL EXPENSES 260,401 50,000 310,401 207,666.74 .00 102,734.44

Report generated: 09/28/2023 17:06 page 1

User: SampsonL
Program ID: glytdbud



"1 TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 10
TRANFRS REVISED AVATLABLE PCT
ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USE/COL

ORIGINAL
APPROP ADJISTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL
GRAND TOTAL 260,401 25,000 285,401 202,774.14 .00 82,627.04 71.0%

fOR0s

%% END OF REPORT - Generated by Sampson, Linda

Page 2

Report generated: 09/28/2023 17:06
user: SampsonL
Program ID: glytdbud



"2 TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 10

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVATILABLE
APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET

ACCOUNTS FOR:
A General Fund

PCT
USE/COL

A8160 Refuse & Garbage

A8160 439892 sSolid wWaste State -30,000 0 -30,000 .00 .00 -30,000.00 0%
A8160 510010 Fulltime 64,227 0 64,227 44,465.31 .00 19,761.69 69.2%
A8160 520280 Tools Large/ Power 0 569 569 568.99 .00 .00 100.0%
A8160 540010 Advertising 7,500 0 7,500 6,338.88 869.87 291.25 96.1%
A8160 540180 Dues 175 0 175 .00 .00 175.00 .0%
A8160 540270 Insurance-Liabilit 1,355 0 1,355 .00 .00 1,355.00 .0%
A8160 540320 Leased/Service Equ 0 2,000 2,000 213.57 .00 1,786.43 10.7%
A8160 540390 Mileage Expense 167 0 167 .00 .00 166.75 .0%
A8160 540420 office Supplies 2,000 -569 1,431 718.71 .00 712.30  50.2%
A8160 540444 Permits, Fees, Ins 100 0 100 .00 .00 100.00 .0%
A8160 540480 Postage 200 0 200 .00 .00 200.00 .0%
A8160 540487 Program Expense-Re 0 500 500 51.00 .00 449.00 10.2%
A8160 542140 Contracting Servic 100,000 -2,000 98,000 13,350.00 .00 84,650.00 13.6%
A8160 542261 Household Hazardou 75,000 0 75,000 16,775.38 .00 58,224.62 22.4%
A8160 542485 Printing/Paper 1,500 0 1,500 .00 .00 1,500.00 .0%
A8160 542640 Supplies (Not Offi 11,000 -500 10,500 7,546.57 .00 2,953.43  71.9%
A8160 542680 Tires 3,900 0 3,900 .00 .00 3,900.00 .0%
A8160 581088 State Retirement F 7,587 0 7,587 5,039.37 .00 2,547.63  66.4%
A8160 583088 Social Security Fr 4,396 0 4,396 3,461.39 .00 934.61 78.7%
A8160 584088 workers Compensati 1,411 0 1,411 930.43 .00 480.57 65.9%
A8160 585588 Disability Insuran 113 0 113 49.59 .00 63.41 43.9%
A8160 586088 Health Insurance F 9,585 0 9,585 8,155.37 .00 1,429.63 85.1%
A8160 588988 EAP Fringe 115 0 115 11.59 .00 103.41 10.1%

TOTAL Refuse & Garbage 260,331 0 260,331 107,676.15 869.87 151,784.73  41.7%

TOTAL General Fund 260,331 0 260,331 107,676.15 869.87 151,784.73  41.7%

TOTAL REVENUES -30,000 0 -30,000 .00 .00 -30,000.00
TOTAL EXPENSES 290,331 0 290,331 107,676.15 869.87 181,784.73

Report generated: 09/26/2023 13:01 Page 1
User: PrattkE

Program ID: glytdbud



"1 TIOGA COUNTY, NEW YORK

Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

FOR 2023 10

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET BUDGET USE/COL

GRAND TOTAL 260,331 0 260,331 107,676.15 869.87 151,784.73  41.7%

YD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES

** END OF REPORT - Generated by Pratt, Ellen **

Report generated: 09/26/2023 13:01 Page 2

User: PrattE
Program ID: glytdbud



Local Law Filing New York State Department of State
41 State Street, Albany, NY 12231

County of Tioga
Local Law No. X of the Year 2023.

A Local Law establishing the Tioga County Mandatory Source Separation
Law and repealing Local Law No. 1 of the Year 2020 entitled Tioga County
Mandatory Source Separation Law.

Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the County of Tioga as follows:

SECTION 1: TITLE

Local Law No. 1 of the Year 2020 entitled Tioga County Mandatory Source
Separation Law is hereby REPEALED and REPLACED with the establishment
of Local Law No. X of the Year 2023 entitled Tioga County Mandatory
Source Separation Law.

SECTION 2: PURPOSE

The purpose of this article is to encourage, facilitate, and mandate the
source separation of recyclable materials on the part of each and every
household, business, and institution within Tioga County. The Tioga County
Legislature acknowledges that control of the collection, fransportation,
disposal of solid waste and recycling with emphasis on source reduction
and reuse in the county is essential to the economy and general welfare of
the citizens of Tioga County. The current version is infended to replace
Llocal Law No. 1 of 2020 entitled Tioga County Mandatfory Source
Separation Law.

SECTION 3: AUTHORITY

This Local Law is hereby enacted pursuant to the authority granted by
Section 10 of the Municipal Home Rule Law and Section 120-aa of the
General Municipal Law of the State of New York.

SECTION 4: DEFINITIONS

A. Terms as used or referred to in this article, unless a different meaning
clearly appears from the context, are as defined in Title 6 Part 360 of the
New York Codes, Rules and Regulations, Solid Waste Management
Facilities, as amended.

B. As used in this article, the following additional terms shall have the
meanings indicated:




MATERIALS RECOVERY FACILITY (MRF) — A facility approved by the New York
State Department of Environmental Conservation for receiving and
processing recyclable materials into marketable commodities.

PUBLIC FACILITY — Any facility allowing public access, including but not
limited to parks, recreational facilities, shopping centers, shopping malls,
office buildings, restaurants, hospitals, schools, and churches.

SOURCE SEPARATION — That recyclables shall be maintained and placed
for collection separately from refuse infended for disposal.

SOLID WASTE - All materials discarded as being spent, useless, worthless or
in excess to the owners at the time of discard or rejection, including but not
limited to garbage or refuse, but shall not include Recyclables, Yard and
Garden Waste, human wastes, rendering wastes, major appliances,
regulated medical waste, construction and demolition wastes, residue from
incinerators or other destructive systems for processing waste, junked
automobiles, tires, pathological, toxic, explosive, liquid, radioactive
material or other waste material which, under existing or future federal,
state or local laws, require special handling in its collection or disposal.

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGER - The manager of the Solid Waste Department
appointed by the Economic Development & Planning Director, Economic
Development & Planning Deputy Director, and/or the Tioga County
Legislature.

WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES — Any person, company partnership or other
entity providing collection or transfer of refuse and/or solid wasste, including
tires to a solid waste management facility.

WASTE GENERATOR — Any entity which generates solid waste.

WASTE HAULER - Any person, company, partnership or other entity
engaged in the business of providing Collection Service pursuant to any
contract, agreement, or other arrangement with any Waste Generator,
where Solid Waste is collected for disposal at a permitted solid waste
disposal or transfer facility, or a municipal department or other
governmental division responsible for collection of Solid Waste from some
or all Waste Generators in Tioga County.

SECTION 5: SOURCE SEPARATION REQUIREMENT
A. Every Waste Generator shall Source Separate, which means the
segregation of County Recyclable Materials from non-recyclable Solid



Waste at the point of generation by Waste Generators, and the
placement of County Recyclable Materials info Recycling Receptacles
for collection and delivery to a Materials Recovery Facility or Recycling
Facility.

Materials that must be source-separated include paper, corrugated
cardboard, glass, metals, plastics, leaves, yard wastes, tires, batteries (wet
and dry cell) and household hazardous waste. A detailed published list of
materials to be curbside recycled will be on file with the Tioga County
Legislature and may be updated from time to time.

B.

For the purpose of this article, the term "recyclable material” shall mean
those materials that must be source separated, as defined in B, with the
exception of household hazardous waste.

. Each and every waste hauler, public and private, providing waste

collection services in the County of Tioga shall be required to provide
curbside collection of source separated recyclables for all units serviced
by the hauler.

. All public and private haulers are prohibited from commingling source

separated recyclables with solid waste.

Every Waste Generator shall deliver or arrange for the delivery of County
Recyclable Materials to a Recycling Facility or make source separated
County Recyclable Materials available for collection by a Waste
Hauler/Recyclables Collector and ultimate delivery to a Materials
Recovery Facility or Recycling Facility.

SECTION é: PREPARATION OF RECYCLABLES AND OTHER SOURCE

SEPARATED MATERIALS FOR CURBSIDE COLLECTION

A.

Nothing in this article is intended to prevent any waste generator from
making arrangements for the reuse, private collection, sale or donation
of recyclables; provided, however, that records shall be kept of all such
collection of recyclables.

From the fime any person places any recyclable materials at or near
any curb, sidewalk or street for purposes of collection by a waste hauler,
those recyclable materials shall be considered the property of the waste
hauler. No other person shall collect, pick up, remove or cause fo be
collected, picked up or removed any recyclable materials so placed for
collection. Each such unauthorized collection, pickup or removal shall
constitute a separate violation of this article.

In the event that a hauler has refused to collect certain recyclable
materials because they have not been placed or freated in
accordance with the provisions of this article, the person responsible for
initially placing those materials for collection may and shall remove
those materials from any curb, sidewalk or street in accordance with the
provisions of this article.



D. Placement of Recyclables

1. Recyclable materials shall be placed separately from any non-

recyclable solid waste placed for collection. Recyclable materials
should be prepared in conformance with County practices and
standards established pursuant to this section.

2. No person shall place any recyclable materials at or near any curb,
sidewalk or street for purposes of collection unless the materials are
prepared in conformance with County practices and standards
established pursuant to this section.

3. The Tioga County Sustainability Manager is hereby authorized and
directed to designate, by written statement, from time to time, the
practices and standards for preparation of recyclables for
collection. Such written designation shall be filed with the Clerk of
the County Legislature and shall become effective 90 days after
filing. The Tioga County Sustainability Manager may solicit
information and input from solid waste collectors, solid waste
management facility operators, and other concerned parties prior
to designating revised rules for preparation of materials.

E. Waste haulers shall not be responsible for collection of waste materials,
which have not been placed or prepared in accord with this article. In
the event of non-collection of waste or recyclable materials, the hauler
shall provide written notification of reason for non-collection.

F. The responsible generator shall immediately remove and properly
prepare and dispose of all materials refused for collection, taking all
measures necessary to properly and legally restore all disturbed land and
surface to the condition existing prior to deposition or reimburse the
County or other municipal entity for the same.

Multifamily buildings and complexes.

A. Apartment complexes, condominium complexes, cooperative
apartments, hotels, motels and bungalow or resort colonies shall be
required fo establish a private drop off program for the source
separation of recyclable materials for collection and transportation to a
recycling facility where curbside collection is not practiced or desired.

B. The owner and/or manager of every multifamily apartment building or
condominium within the County shall provide and maintain, in a neaf
and sanitary condition, recycling drop off(s) to receive all recyclable
materials generated by residents of the building or complex. In cases
where a condominium association exists, the condominium association
shall be responsible for provision and maintenance of the recycling drop
off(s). It shall be the tenant's responsibility to separate designated



.

recyclable materials from the solid waste and deposit the recyclables in
the drop off(s) in the manner prescribed by facility management.

The owner or manager of every multifamily building or complex shall
arrange for the collection and/or transportation of all recyclable
materials to a material recovery facility or secondary materials market.

Residential/commercial (institutional) and industrial waste and recyclables.

A.

All residential solid waste collected by either municipal or private haulers
shall be source separated and delivered to an appropriate facility for
disposition, as may be designated by the County.

All commercial/industrial/institutional solid waste collected by either
municipal or private haulers shall be source separated and delivered fo
an appropriate facility for disposition, as may be designated by the
County.

. All recyclable commercial/industrial/institutional by-products shall be

source separated and delivered to an appropriate facility for the
express purpose of processing for sale to a secondary materials market.
Nothing in this section shall prevent waste generators from marketing
these materials directly to an end-use market, secondary materials
market or secondary materials broker.

SECTION 7: PENALTIES

Penalties for Waste Generators.

A.

B.

Lo

Failure to comply with this article by any person shall be an offense
punishable as provided.

Each day of violation of this artficle shall constitute a separate offense.
The waste hauler shall maintain the right to refuse collection of solid
waste and/or recyclables due to a lack of source separation or proper
preparation on the part of the waste generator. In such a case, the
hauler shall affix a notice to the waste material, which clearly states the
reason for non-collection. '

. Individuals convicted of a first offense under this article shall be subject

to a fine of not less than $25 and not more than $50. Conviction of a
second offense within one year of the first offense shall be punishable
by a fine of not less than $50 and not more than $100. Conviction of
subsequent offense(s) within one year of the first offense shall be
punishable by a fine of at least $100 and not more than $200. In addition
to the penalties listed above, anyone convicted of an offense under the
provisions of this article shall be subject to a civil penalty fo recover cost
of enforcement and prosecution, including but not limited to attorneys'
fees, court costs and site cleanup costs, if applicable.

Any company, partnership, corporation, municipality or enfity other
than an individual person convicted of a first offense as provided for by



this article shall be subject to a fine of not less than $200 and not more
than $1,000. Conviction of subsequent offenses shall be punishable by a
fine of not less than $1,000 and not more than $2,000. Any such enfity
convicted of an offense under the provisions of this article shall also be
subject to a civil penalty to recover the cost of enforcement and
prosecution, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, court costs and
site cleanup costs, if applicable. In addition, the County Aftorney may
also maintain an action or proceeding in the name of Tioga County in
a court of competent jurisdiction to compel compliance with or to
restrain by injunction such violation.

Penalties for Waste Haulers.

A. Failure of any hauler to comply with this article shall be an offense
punishable as provided.

B. Each day of violation of this article shall constitute a separate offense.

C. Violation of any section of this article shall be punishable by a fine not in
excess of $1,000. In addition, the violation of any section of this article
shall be subject to a civil penalty imposed by the County to recover cost
associated with enforcement and prosecution, including but not limited
to reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and site cleanup costs, if
applicable. And, in addition, Tioga County may also maintain an action
or proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction fo compel
compliance with or to restrain by injunction any violation of this article.

SECTION 8: SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL ON PUBLIC FACILITIES AND PROPERTY

A. All public facilities within Tioga County shall provide public refuse
receptacles for solid waste disposal by facility users and employees.
These receptacles shall only be utilized for solid waste generated onsite.
1. Parks may, in lieu of providing separate public receptacles for refuse,

require that park patrons take their refuse with them upon leaving the
park. The municipalities shall post signs af all park entrances advising
the public of the rule. Park patrons shall be responsible for removing
refuse from the park and disposing of them in accordance with this
arficle.

B. There shall be provided separate public receptacles for recyclables.
Such containers shall be clearly marked RECYCLE, and a list of
recyclable items shall accompany said public refuse receptacle. There
shall be an adequate number of clearly marked and accessible public
receptacles for recyclable materials in order fo facilitate recycling.
These receptacles shall only be utilized for recyclables generated onsite.

C. All recyclable materials shall be placed in separate public recycling
receptacles. The responsibility to separate recyclables from non-
recyclables shall be placed on the facility user.



1. Parks may, in lieu of providing separate public receptacles for
recyclables, require that park patrons take their recyclable materials
with them upon leaving the park. The municipalities shall post signs af all
park entrances advising the public of the rule. Park patrons shall be
responsible for removing recyclables from the park and disposing of
them in accordance with this arficle.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the subsection, concession stands
within the park providing food or other items packaged in recyclable
containers shall provide both refuse and recyclable containers to
conform to this section.

D. It shall be a violation of this article for any person to place or to cause to
be placed any material other than a recyclable in or near a public
receptacle designated for recyclable materials.

E. It shall also be a violation of this article for any person to place or to
cause o be placed any recyclable material in or near a public refuse
receptacle designated for non-recyclable materials.

F. Any person, including employees of public facilities, convicted of a
violation of this section shall be subject to a fine of up to $50 or
community service.

G. The proprietor of any public facility convicted of a violation of this
section shall be subject to a fine of up to $200 or community service.
Each day of violation shall constitute a separate offense.

SECTION 9: ENFORCEMENT & PERMITTING
A. All provisions of this article shall be enforced by a municipal code
enforcement official or other appropriate enforcement agencies.

B. Permit Procedures for Haulers (Commercial, Business)

1. No Hauler shall collect, transfer or dispose of solid waste and
recyclable materials in Tioga County without possessing current
permit issued by the Sustainability Manager.

2. An application for a solid waste/recycling permit shall be in writing
and shall contain such information as required by the
Sustainability Manager.

3. The application shall be accompanied by the following:

a. Evidence of insurance, conforming with current NYSDEC and
Tioga County requirements.

b. Payment of the administration fee payable to the Tioga
County Treasurer and mailed fo Tioga County Solid Waste, 56
Main Street, Owego, NY 13827.

4. Within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of application, the
Sustainability Manager shall, in writing, grant or deny the
application, or require other further information and/or



8.

9.

documentation. The Sustainability Manager may require
additional information regarding the condition of the applicant’s
vehicles to ensure they will not leak during transit and are capable
of transporting material in a covered condition. The permit may
be withheld for reasons which include the failure to submit all
required information, unsuitable condition of the vehicle(s); any
unresolved fines and/or the applicant’s history of prior
suspensions/violations.

Annual reporting is required by February 28th. If a hauler does not
report their annual tonnages and supporting documentation,
their permit will not be renewed until all past reporfing
documentation is submitted to the Sustainability Manager.
Permits shall expire annually on March 31st. Permits may be
renewed pursuant to the provisions of this law.

Permits may be suspended or revoked by the Sustainability
Manager pursuant fo this local law.

Permit fees and or changes in permit fees shall be reviewed and
approved by the Tioga County Legislature.

Termination of a permitted hauler's insurance automatically
invalidates the hauling permits.

10.Permits shall not be transferable to another business without

express written permission of the Sustainability Manager.

11.Permits may be suspended by the Sustainability Manager for the

following: _

a. If upon inspection, the hauler's vehicle is in such a condifion as
to allow leakage while in fransit, or

b. If the body of the truck is not wholly enclosed and or the
contents (load) are not secured with a cover or tarping
mechanism or other appropriate load securing device, or

c. If the operation or unloading of vehicles is not conducted in a
manner so as to prevent the premature spillage or loss of
contents, or

d. If the hauler has failed to remedy the conditions leading to a
suspension of a permit within the time specified in such order
of suspension, or

e. Any other violation of law of these regulations.

12.Suspension or revocation of a permit will be followed by a written

notice of such violation, addressed to the permittee. Within fifteen
(15) days of the receipt of said written notice of suspension or
revocation, the hauler must notify, in writing to the Sustainability
Manager and the Finance Committee of the Tioga County
Legislature and shall file petition stating the reasons and basis for
said appeal.



13. Within fifteen (15) days of an appeal, the Finance Committee shall
conduct a hearing, upon notice to the permittee to review the
action of the Sustainability Manager with respect to suspension or
revocation of a permit. The permittee shall present all withesses
and documents and shall be entitled to be represented by
counsel at any stage of the proceedings. Said proceedings may
be adjourned only once by right of the permittee; and all other
adjournments shall be determined by the members of the
Committee. Within fifteen (15) days of said hearing, said appeals
committee shall by written decision, affiirm the actions of the
Sustainability Manager, reinstate such permit, and/or take any
other appropriate action. Permittee may continue to conduct
hauling operations during the appeal period.

SECTION 10: REPORTING TO TIOGA COUNTY SUSTAINABILITY MANAGER

A. All waste haulers, and any other person or entity that collects, transports
and/or markets recyclables, must maintain monthly records of alll
recyclable material. These records must include the following:

1. The total tonnage, by material, of recyclable material collected.
a) The total tonnage, by material, of recyclable material
delivered to each and every materials recovery facility,
secondary materials market, secondary materials broker or
end-use market.
b) Weight slips from the broker or end-use market will fulfill this
requirement.

B. Reports containing the information required in this section shall be
compiled and delivered to the Sustainability Manager on an annual
basis. Reports shall be filed with the Sustainability Manager no later than
February 28th of the subsequent year of filing.

C. Each waste hauler shall retain for no less than five years the records and
documents required pursuant to this article and shall make such
documents available upon the request of the Sustainability Manager or
low enforcement officers.

SECTION 11: PRIORITY

Pursuant to Section 1 of Chapter 675 of the Laws of 1982 of the State, this
article takes precedence over and shall supersede any inconsistent
provisions of any local law enacted by any municipality within the County.

SECTION 12: EFFECTIVE DATE
This Local law shall take effect January 1, 2024.




(Complete the certification in the paragraph that applies o the filing of this local law and
strike out that which is not applicable.) :

1. (Final adoption by local legislative body only.)

| hereby certify that the local law annexed hereto, designated as local law No. of 2023 of
the (County) of Tioga was duly passed by the Tioga County Legislature on , 2023, in
accordance with the applicable provisions of law.

2. (Passage by local legislative body with approval, no disapproval or repassage after
disapproval by the Elective Chief Executive Officer*.)
| hereby certify that the local law annexed hereto, designated as local law No.  of 2023

of the (County) (City) (Town) (Village) of was duly passed by the

on , 2023 , and was (approved)(not disapproved)(repassed
after disapproval) by the and was deemed duly
adopted on , 2023, in accordance with the applicable

provisions of law.

3. (Final adoption by referendum.)

| hereby certify that the local law annexed hereto, designated as local law No. of 2023
of the (County)(City) (Town)(Village) of was duly passed by
the on , 2023, and was
(approved)(not disapproved)(repassed after disapproval) by the
on , 2023 Such local law was submitted to the people by reason of
a (mandatory) (permissive) referendum, and received the affirmative vote of a majority of
the qualified electors voting thereon at the (general)(special)(annual)election held on
, 2023, in accordance with the applicable provisions of law.

4. (Subject to permissive referendum and final adoption because no valid pefition was
filed requesting referendum.)
| hereby certify that the local law annexed hereto, designated as local law No. of 2023
of the (County)(City) (Town)(Village) of was duly passed by the
on , 2023, and was (approved) (not disapproved) (repassed after
disapproval) by the on , 2023. Such
local law was subject to permissive referendum and no valid petition requesting such
referendum was filed as of , 2023, in accordance with the applicable
provisions of law.

5. (City local law conceming Charter revision proposed by petition.)

| hereby certify that the local law annexed hereto, designated as local law No.
of 2023 of the City of having been submitted to referendum pursuant
to the provisions of section (36)(37) of the Municipal Home Rule Law, and having received
the affirmative vote of a majority of the qualified electors of such city voting thereon at
the (special) (general) election held on , 2023, become operative.

*Elective Chief Executive Officer means or includes the chief executive officer of a county
elected on a county-wide basis or, if there be none, the chairperson of the county
legislative body, the mayor of a city or vilage, or the supervisor of a town where such
officer is vested with the power to approve or veto local laws or ordinances.

10



6. (County local law concerning adoption of Charter.)

| hereby certify that the local law annexed hereto, designated as local law No. of
2023 of the County of , State of New York, having been submitted to
the electors at the General Election of November , 2023, pursuant to subdivisions 5

and 7 of section 33 of the Municipal Home Rule Law, and having received the affirmative
vote of a majority of the qualified electors of the cities of said county as a unit and of a
majority of the qualified electors of the towns of said county considered as a unit voting at
said general election, became operative.

(If any other authorized form of final adoption has been followed, please provide an
appropriate certification.)

| further certify that | have compared the preceding local law with the original on file in
this office and that the same is a correct transcript therefrom and of the whole of such
original local law, and was finally adopted in the manner indicated in paragraph 1
above.

Clerk of the County legislative body, City, Town
or Vilage Clerk or officer designated by local
legislative body

(Seal) Date:

(Certification to be executed by County Attorney, Corporation Counsel, Town Attorney,
Village Attorney or other authorized Attorney of locality.)

State of New York
County of Tioga
, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing local law contains the correct text

and that all proper proceedings have been had or taken for the enactment of the local
law annexed hereto.

Signature
Peter Dewind
Title County Attorney

County of Tioga
City
Town
Village
Date:

11



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE
LEGAL/FINANCE COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AMEND 2023 BUDGET AND TRANSFER FUNDS
SOLID WASTE

WHEREAS: Tioga County Solid Waste's Sustainability Manager has funds from
a Clean Energy Communities grant; and

WHEREAS: These funds are for energy efficiency and clean energy
equipment; and

WHEREAS: The unspent Clean Energy Communities grant funds from 2022
were not carried forwarded into 2023 and amending of Budget and
Transfer of Funds requires Legislative approval; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That any unspent and unappropriated Clean Energy
Communities grant funds from 2022 be carried forward as follows:

To: A8160 540420 Office Supplies $4,350.02
And be it further

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature authorizes the transfer of
$3,781.03 and appropriate funds as follows:

From: A8160 540420 Office Supplies $3,781.03
To:  A8160 520280 Tools Large/Power $3,781.03
And be it further

RESOLVED: That the remaining available funds on 12/31/23 be carried
forward into the 2024 budget year.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR DEC
MUNICIPAL WASTE REDUCTION AND
RECYCLING (MWRR) PROGRAM

WHEREAS: The State of New York announced a grant from the DEC
Municipal Waste Reduction and Recycling Program to support counties
and local governments with their recycling and waste reduction program
expenses; and

WHEREAS: Through this grant Solid Waste would be partially reimbursed for
their eligible costs of the Sustainability Manager position and recycling
and waste reduction educational and outreach program; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature authorizes the Sustainability
Manager to apply and administer said grant via NYS Grants Gateway;
and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature authorizes and directs the
Chair or their designhee to sign the application via Grants Gateway for
grant upon approval by the County Attorney.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -23 RECOMMEND MEMBER TO THE
SUSQUEHANNA HERITAGE AREA
COMMISSION

WHEREAS: Per Resolution No. 25-16, the Tioga County Legislature resolved
that the Economic Development and Planning Committee recommend
designees for the Municipal Representative and the Advisory Board
Member on the Susquehanna Heritage Area (SHA) Commission for the term
of office of the County Legislative Chair who appoints said persons; and

WHEREAS: Currently Rebecca Maffei, Tioga County Tourism Director, and
Abbey Ortu, Community Development Specialist of Economic
Development and Planning, have been serving as the two (2) SHA
Commission members; and

WHEREAS: Abbey Ortu is no longer able to serve as a Commission member;
and

WHEREAS: Elaine Jardine, County Planning Director, in the Economic
Development and Planning Department is willing to serve; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Economic Development and Planning Committee
recommend Rebecca Maffei, the Tioga County Tourism Director, continue
to serve as the Municipal Representative and Elaine Jardine, County
Planning Director, serve as the Advisory Board member on the
Susquehanna Heritage Area Commission for the term of office of the
County Legislative Chair who appoints said person.



